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IN THE SUPREME COURT 
STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 

________________ 
 

No. 30087 
________________ 

 
STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA,  
 
  Plaintiff and Appellee, 
v. 
 
VANDON JOSEPH PRETTY WEASEL, 
 
  Defendant and Appellant. 
 

________________ 
 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

 
In this brief, Appellant, Vandon Joseph Pretty Weasel, is referred to 

as “Pretty Weasel.”  Appellee, the State of South Dakota, is referred to as 

“State.”  References to documents will be designated as follows: 

Settled Record (Lawrence County Criminal File  
No. 20-379) ..................................................................... SR 

 
Jury Trial Transcripts (February 28-March 2, 2022) ........ JT 
 

Pretty Weasel’s Brief  .................................................... PWB 
 

Exhibits  .......................................................................... EX 
 

All document designations will be followed by the appropriate page 

number(s). 

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT 

 Defendant appeals from the Judgment of Convictions and 

Sentences entered by the Honorable Michelle K. Comer, Circuit Court 

Judge, Fourth Judicial Circuit, on July 28, 2022.  SR 426-30.  
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Defendant filed a Notice of Appeal on August 11, 2022.  SR 436-37.  This 

Court has jurisdiction under SDCL 23A-32-2. 

STATEMENT OF LEGAL ISSUE AND AUTHORITIES 

 

WHETHER THE CIRCUIT COURT PROPERLY ALLOWED DEBRA 

HUGHES TO TESTIFY AT TRIAL?  

 

The circuit court allowed Debra Hughes to testify at trial.  

 

          Osdoba v. Kelley-Osdoba, 2018 S.D. 43, 913 N.W.2d 496 

State v. Buchholtz, 2013 S.D. 96, 841 N.W.2d 449 

State v. Thomas, 2019 S.D. 1, 922 N.W.2d 9 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On May 13, 2020, the Lawrence County Grand Jury indicted Pretty 

Weasel on twelve counts of Sexual Contact with a Minor Under the Age of 

Sixteen, a Class 3 felony, contrary to SDCL 22-22-7, and one count of 

First-Degree Rape, a Class C felony, contrary to SDCL 22-22-1(1).   

SR 6-10.  A.D. was the victim in all thirteen counts. 

On June 21, 2021, Pretty Weasel moved for a Subpoena Duces 

Tecum for an in-camera review of A.D.’s counseling records.  SR 24.  The 

circuit court granted Pretty Weasel’s request over the State’s objections 

on July 29, 2021.  SR 476-77.  The State was unaware A.D. was in 

counseling and did not have access to her counseling records.  SR 476-

77.  The court signed the Subpoena Duces Tecum on February 11, 2022.  

SR 97-98.  Debra Hughes, A.D.’s counselor, signed the Admission of 

Service for the Subpoena Deces Tecum on February 24, 2022.  SR 99.   
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 The court received the counseling records the weekend before trial, 

with trial starting on Monday.  JT 378.  The court disseminated the 

counseling records to both parties Monday morning, and the parties 

reviewed them after jury selection, but before the first witness was called.  

JT 378.  Pretty Weasel’s Counsel acknowledged there was a subpoena for 

the counseling records and Hughes had been in contact with his office 

informing him that she had COVID, providing a reason for the delay.   

JT 378-79.     

Pretty Weasel did not challenge Hughes’s credibility as an expert 

witness at trial.  See JT 362-73.  In fact, when the State called Hughes as 

a witness, Pretty Weasel did not object, ask for a recess, or request a 

Daubert hearing.  JT 362-63; see Daubert v. Merrell Dow Pharm., Inc., 

509 U.S. 579, 113 S. Ct. 2786, 125 L. Ed. 2d 469 (1993).  When the 

State questioned Hughes, Pretty Weasel objected when the prosecutor 

asked Hughes, “[a]nd what was that indicative of in your profession?”1  

Pretty Weasel’s objection relied on unnoticed 702 and improper 702.  The 

similar objection was made when the prosecutor asked what Hughes’s 

diagnosis2 for A.D. was.  JT 367.  The circuit court overruled Pretty 

Weasel’s objections and told him that he was the one who subpoenaed 

the records and both parties were provided copies.  JT 367.      

 
1 This question was asked after Hughes described A.D.’s lack of hygiene.  
  JT 366.   
2 Pretty Weasel objected stating, “702, State v. Buchholtz.”  JT 367.   
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After a three-day trial, the jury found Pretty Weasel guilty on ten 

counts of Sexual Contact with a Minor Under the Age of Sixteen and one 

count of First-Degree Rape.  SR 228-30.  The court sentenced  

Pretty Weasel to ten years in prison for each count of Sexual Contact 

with a Minor Under the Age of Sixteen.  SR 426-29.  These sentences 

were ordered to run concurrent with each other.  SR 426-29.  The court 

sentenced Pretty Weasel to twenty-five years in prison for his First-

Degree Rape conviction.  It ordered the sentence run consecutive to the 

other sentences.  SR 426-29.     

STATEMENT OF FACTS 

 On March 10, 2020, A.D. (DOB 4/9/2009) seemed unhappy, and 

not her ordinary self.  JT 140.  She did not want to go to school and was 

distraught.  JT 143.  Her mother, J.P. (Mother), told her to get in the car 

and they would go for a drive.  JT 144.  Once in the car, Mother asked 

A.D. if something was going on and why she did not want to go to school.  

JT 144.  A.D. began crying and told Mother she did not want to break up 

the family.  JT 144.  She disclosed that her stepfather, Pretty Weasel, 

had been inappropriately touching her for “a very long time.”  JT 144. 

 This was not the first time A.D. revealed Pretty Weasel had abused 

her.  Around Halloween 2015, A.D.’s father, V.B. (Father), noticed A.D. 

exhibited inappropriate behavior and contacted Mother.  JT 137.  Law 

enforcement was contacted, and A.D. participated in a forensic interview 

conducted by Brandi Tonkel at Children’s Home Child Advocacy Center.  
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JT 328.  During the interview, A.D. did not disclose sexual abuse, but 

did say Pretty Weasel hit her.  JT 139, 332-33.       

 Because of A.D.’s new disclosure, Mother filed a report with law 

enforcement.  JT 146.  A.D. participated in another forensic interview, 

again with Tonkel at Children’s Home Child Advocacy Center.  JT 328.  

During the interview A.D. told Tonkel that Pretty Weasel had been 

sexually abusing her.  JT 329-30; EX 5.  She described how Pretty 

Weasel digitally penetrated her and performed cunnilingus on her.  EX 5.   

ARGUMENT 

THE CIRCUIT COURT PROPERLY ALLOWED DEBRA HUGHES TO 

TESTIFY AT TRIAL.3 

Pretty Weasel claims the circuit court errored when it allowed 

Debra Hughes, an “unnoticed expert witness,” to testify.  See PWB.  He 

provides several reasons why the testimony was inappropriate, including: 

• it violated his right to a fair trial; 

• it bolstered A.D.’s credibility; 

• Hughes was not qualified as an expert; 

• there was no foundation to her testimony; 

• Hughes testified beyond the scope allowed in State v.  
 Buchholz;  

• Pretty Weasel was denied the opportunity to rebut Hughes’s  
testimony; and  

• there was not an opportunity for a Daubert hearing.  
  

See PWB.  Pretty Weasel argues because of these alleged violations, he 

was prejudiced.  PWB 12-25.  But Pretty Weasel’s arguments fail.  First, 

 
3 Pretty Weasel raised two issues on appeal.  See PWB.  Because both 
issues related to the testimony of Debra Hughes, the State has combined 

the issues for brevity.    



6 

 

he waived these issues on appeal because he did not preserve these.  

Second, Hughes was not testifying as an expert.  And third, Hughes’s 

testimony was not prejudicial.  

A. Standard of Review.  

The circuit court’s ‘“evidentiary rulings are presumed to be correct 

and are reviewed under the abuse of discretion standard.’”  State v. 

Goodshot, 2017 S.D. 33, ¶ 14, 897 N.W.2d 346, 350 (quoting State v. 

Hannemann, 2012 S.D. 79, ¶ 19, 823 N.W.2d 357, 362).  

“An abuse of discretion is ‘a fundamental error of judgment, a choice 

outside the range of permissible choices, a decision, which on full 

consideration, is arbitrary or unreasonable.’”  People in Interest of D.S., 

2022 S.D. 11, ¶ 21, 970 N.W.2d 547, 554 (quoting State v. Stone, 2019 

S.D. 18, ¶ 34, 925 N.W.2d 488, 499-500).  “‘Not only must error be 

demonstrated, but it must also be shown to be prejudicial error.’”  State 

v. Hayes, 2014 S.D. 72, ¶ 22, 855 N.W.2d 668, 675 (quoting State v. 

Moran, 2003 S.D. 14, ¶ 13, 657 N.W.2d 319, 324).  Prejudicial error 

occurs when ‘“in all probability the error produced some effect upon the 

jury’s verdict and is harmful’” to defendant’s substantial rights.  State v. 

Reeves, 2021 S.D. 64, ¶ 11, 967 N.W.2d 144, 147 (quoting State v. 

Shelton, 2021 S.D. 22, ¶ 16, 958 N.W.2d 721, 727).      

The circuit court has “‘broad discretion in determining the 

qualifications of expert witnesses and in admitting expert testimony.’”  

State v. Machmuller, 2001 S.D. 82, ¶ 14, 630 N.W.2d 495, 499 (quoting 
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State v. Edelman, 1999 S.D. 52, ¶ 38, 593 N.W.2d 419, 425).  The court’s 

“rulings in this regard are [also] reviewed under the abuse of discretion 

standard.”  Machmuller, 2001 S.D. 82, ¶ 14, 630 N.W.2d at 499. 

B. Pretty Weasel Waived the Ability to Challenge Hughes’s Testimony          
on Appeal. 
 

‘“[P]arties must object to specific court action and state the reason 

underlying their objection so that the circuit court has an opportunity to 

correct any error.’”  State v. Guzman, 2022 S.D. 70, ¶ 26, –N.W.2d- 

(quoting State v. Divan, 2006 S.D. 105, ¶ 9, 724 N.W.2d 865, 869).  ‘“To 

preserve issues for appellate review litigants must make known to the 

[circuit] courts the actions they seek to achieve or object to the actions of 

the court, giving their reasons.’”  State v. Bryant, 2020 S.D. 49, ¶ 18, 948 

N.W.2d 333, 338 (quoting State v. Dufault, 2001 S.D. 66, ¶ 7, 628 

N.W.2d 755, 757).  “Even issues over the denial of constitutional rights 

may be deemed waived by failure to take action to preserve the 

issues for appeal.”  State v. Fifteen Impounded Cats, 2010 S.D. 50, ¶ 10, 

785 N.W.2d 272, 277 (citing Schlenker v. South Dakota Dept. of Pub. 

Safety, 318 N.W.2d 351, 353 (S.D. 1982)).   

While it is true that Pretty Weasel objected to a few questions 

asked by the State and provided the reasoning as unnoticed 702, 

improper 702, he did not expand on why it was improper.  To preserve 

an issue for appeal, the ‘“objection must be sufficiently specific to put the 

circuit court on notice of the alleged error so it has the opportunity to 



8 

 

correct it.’”  Osdoba v. Kelley-Osdoba, 2018 S.D. 43, ¶ 23, 913 N.W.2d 

496, 503 (quoting Halbersma v. Halbersma, 2009 S.D. 98, ¶ 29, 775 

N.W.2d 210, 220).  But Pretty Weasel did not object when the State 

called Hughes as a witness.  He did not ask the court for a Daubert 

hearing.  He did not ask to voir dire the witness to see if she was properly 

qualified.  These are all things Pretty Weasel now complains he was 

denied on appeal.  When a party “raises a material dispute as to the 

admissibility of expert scientific evidence, the district court must hold an 

in limine hearing (a so-called Daubert hearing) to consider the conflicting 

evidence and make findings about the soundness and reliability of the 

methodology employed by the scientific experts.”  Daubert v. Merrell Dow 

Pharm., Inc., 43 F.3d 1311, 1319 n.10 (9th Cir. 1995).     

Because Pretty Weasel did not object to Hughes’s testimony at the 

time of trial, he did not give the circuit court an opportunity to correct 

any potential error.  Therefore, his argument is waived.   

C. Hughes Did Not Testify as an Expert Witness in Child Sexual  

Abuse. 

An expert's role is to “assist the trier of fact to understand the 

evidence or to determine a fact in issue.”  State v. Buchholtz, 2013 S.D. 

96, ¶ 28, 841 N.W.2d 449, 459 (quoting SDCL 19-15-24 (Rule 702)).  

Here, the issue for the jury to determine was whether Pretty Weasel 

 
4 SDCL 19-15-2 (Rule 702) has been updated to SDCL 19-19-702.  The 

statute language did not change in updating the citation.   
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sexually abused A.D.  Hughes’s testimony did not address this.  She 

testified that A.D. had been sexual abused by her stepbrother, K.P., how 

A.D.’s behavior changed in terms of her appearance and hygiene, and 

whether there was a correlation between being spanked and the sexual 

abuse A.D. endured. JT 363-71.   

Hughes was allowed to testify to A.D.’s mental health diagnosis, 

which was post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD).  But she never 

explained the diagnosis.  She never said what caused the diagnosis.  And 

ultimately being diagnosed with PTSD, does not go to the ultimate 

question before the jury.  Additionally, the circuit court never declared 

Hughes was an expert witness, nor did the State ask the court to make 

such finding.   

By way of comparison, the State did offer expert testimony from 

Tonkel.  How the State treated Tonkel compared to Hughes is a stark 

contrast.  It asked Tonkel several questions about her education and 

work history, continuing education, how many cases she has testified at, 

and if she has previously testified as an expert.  But it did just the 

opposite with Hughes.  The State spent minimal time questioning 

Hughes regarding her background asking only a handful of questions5 in 

 
5 The State asked Hughes what her occupation was, how long she had 

worked as such, her educational background, and her professional 
background.   

JT 363-64.   
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that regard.  This further shows her testimony was not elicited as an 

expert.   

Pretty Weasel argues the State failed to establish Hughes as an 

“expert in the area of child sexual abuse.”  PWB 21.  By Pretty Weasel’s 

own admission, the State never offered Hughes’s testimony as expert 

testimony.  He also argues the State failed to lay proper foundation “for 

Hughes to provide any type of expert opinions on the topics of child 

sexual abuse.”  PWB 21.  Again, Hughes was not used as an expert 

witness in this case.  And certainly not an expert in child sexual abuse.  

Instead, Tonkel was offered as the expert in child sexual abuse.         

Because Hughes did not testify as an expert in child sexual abuse, 

Pretty Weasel’s argument fails. 

D.      Hughes’s Testimony Was Not Prejudicial.  

Pretty Weasel claims he was prejudiced by Hughes’s testimony.  

PWB 12-25.  To prove prejudice, Pretty Weasel must show that ‘“in all 

probability, [the claimed error] produced some effect upon the jury's 

verdict and is harmful to the substantial rights of the party assigning it.’”  

State v. Thomas, 2019 S.D. 1, ¶ 27, 922 N.W.2d 9, 17 (quoting State v. 

Mollman, 2003 S.D. 150, ¶ 23, 674 N.W.2d 22, 29).   

Hughes’s testimony did not change the outcome of the trial.  There 

was overwhelming evidence against Pretty Weasel.  Father testified about 

a time around Halloween 2015 where Father was laying down, watching 

a movie with A.D., and A.D. reached over and grabbed his “privates.”  JT 



11 

 

291-93.  A.D. giggled and said Pretty Weasel lets her touch him “there.”  

JT 293.  When Father asked A.D. what she was talking about, A.D. said 

Pretty Weasel “itched” her and “played with her panties.”  JT 293.  Father 

called Mother and law enforcement.  A.D. participated in a forensic 

interview, but she did not disclose abuse at that time.  JT 139.  

A.D. testified that Pretty Weasel digitally penetrated her and 

performed cunnilingus on her.  JT 239, 248-49, 250-51.  She said it 

started as Pretty Weasel giving her backrubs, but as she got older, the 

touching turned inappropriate.  JT 235.  At first, A.D. did not know 

Pretty Weasel’s behavior was wrong, but around the age of seven or eight, 

she realized it was wrong.  JT 236.   

Sometimes A.D. would be sleeping, and she would be awoken by 

Pretty Weasel touching her.  JT 239.  The abuse took place in Mother 

and Pretty Weasel’s bedroom, at night, while Mother was at work.   

JT 237, 330.  Pretty Weasel would take off A.D.’s pants and underwear.  

JT 243.  She would tell Pretty Weasel to stop and that she did not like 

what he was doing.  JT 240.  Pretty Weasel would apologize but would 

not stop the abuse.  JT 247.  One time, A.D. kicked her feet and elbowed 

Pretty Weasel and he stopped.  JT 243. 

A.D. described a time she wanted a pink llama scented stuffed 

animal toy.  JT 248.  Pretty Weasel asked her what “was in it for [him].”  

JT 248.  Pretty Weasel said he wanted “to do it his way.”  JT 248.  A.D. 

really wanted the toy, so she “let him do what he wanted.”  JT 248.  
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Pretty Weasel turned off the lights, closed the door, and took A.D.’s pants 

and underwear off.  JT 248.  He put her legs over his shoulders and put 

his head between her legs.  JT 248.  Pretty Weasel kissed A.D.’s ankle 

“all the way down[,]” and then moved to her other leg and did the same.  

JT 248-49.  He then “kissed [A.D.’s] private area.”  JT 249.   

A.D. said the abuse was constant and felt like it happened every 

day.  JT 235, 238.  One day, A.D. finally had enough, and she confided 

in Mother about Pretty Weasel sexually abusing her.  JT 233.        

The jury also heard Tonkel testify not only about the forensic 

interviews she conducted with A.D., but also about child abuse victims 

in general.  She talked about how A.D. told her Pretty Weasel offered to 

show her his penis, “in case she was curious.”  JT 330.  A.D. told her it 

felt like the abuse occurred every day.  JT 330. 

Tonkel also told the jury it was common for victims to not disclose 

abuse immediately.  JT 333.  She stated the closer a victim is to the 

offender, the longer it takes for the victim to disclose the abuse.  JT 333.  

Sexual abuse is typically at the hands of a well-known individual, which 

can cause conflicting feelings.  JT 334.  The victim can experience fear, 

shame, or embarrassment.  JT 334.      

The forensic interview conducted by Tonkel was played at trial.  

EX 5.  A.D. told Tonkel that Pretty Weasel offered to show her his penis 

“in case she was curious.”  EX 5.  A.D. told Tonkel that Pretty Weasel 
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said “something really gross” to her.  EX 5.  He asked her if she touched 

his nipples, he could then touch hers.  EX 5.   

Throughout her testimony and the forensic interview, A.D. 

described Pretty Weasel’s behavior as “gross,” “upsetting,” and made her 

“uncomfortable.”  See JT 224-87.  EX 5.  A.D. also told the jury about a 

text message Pretty Weasel sent apologizing to her.  EX 4.          

The jury also heard a recorded phone conversation that Mother 

had with Pretty Weasel.  EX 1.  Mother made the call with law 

enforcement present, and they recorded the call with an external 

recording device.  JT 311-12.  During the conversation Pretty Weasel told 

Mother he felt so guilty.  EX 1.  He told Mother he thought A.D. was her, 

when she asked why he was touching A.D.  EX 1.  Mother asked Pretty 

Weasel if he inappropriately touched A.D.  He said that he “didn’t teach 

her to be a liar” and if “she says then . . . I feel guilty . . . ”  EX 5.  He  

told Mother he felt “so freaking guilty” and told Mother he thought A.D. 

was her.  EX 1.  

When Mother asked Pretty Weasel when he started sexually 

abusing A.D., he said he did not know, but that A.D. “was the one that 

started it.”  EX 1.  Pretty Weasel said he was giving A.D. a belly rub and 

she grabbed his hand and moved it higher up.  EX 1.  He stopped but 

A.D. “liked the belly rubs.  And then she just pushed [Pretty Weasel’s] 

hand lower a couple of times.”   EX 1.  Pretty Weasel said the abuse 

happened maybe once a month, “if that.”  EX 1.   
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In short, the evidence against Pretty Weasel, even without 

Hughes’s testimony, was overwhelming.  It cannot be shown that Pretty 

Weasel was prejudiced by Hughes’s testimony that did not even address 

his actions.        

E.  Pretty Weasel Opened the Door to Portions of Hughes’s Testimony.   

Portions of Hughes’s testimony Pretty Weasel now wishes to rebut 

was caused by his questioning of Hughes.  Pretty Weasel’s defense was 

A.D. fabricated being sexually abused by Pretty Weasel because she was 

upset that he spanked her.  PWB 8.  Pretty Weasel was the one who 

initially asked Hughes if A.D. told that A.D. did not like Pretty Weasel 

because he spanked her.  JT 370.  In redirect, the State asked Hughes to 

expound upon whether A.D. fabricated Pretty Weasel raping her because 

she was upset he spanked her.  JT 370.  Defendant claims this directly 

cuts against his defense and had no way to rebut the testimony.  But 

Pretty Weasel opened the door to this testimony. 

The term ‘opening the door’ usually describes the waiver of 
an objection to the admission of evidence.  It often occurs 
when one party introduces evidence that causes another 

party to introduce counterproof that would otherwise be 
inadmissible but for the first party's introduction of the 
subject matter.  The concept of ‘opening the door’ represents 

an effort by courts to prevent one party from creating a 
misleading impression through the selective presentation of 

facts by allowing the other party to explain or contradict that 
impression through evidence that might otherwise be 
inadmissible.  

 

Itin v. Ungar, 17 P.3d 129, 132, n.4 (Colo. 2000), as corrected (Nov. 28, 

2000). “[W]hen a party leaves the trier of fact with a false or 
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misleading impression, the opposing party is entitled to counter with 

evidence to refute the impression created and cure the misleading 

advantage.”  Figlioli v. R.J. Moreau Companies, Inc., 151 N.H. 618, 628, 

866 A.2d 962, 971–72 (2005).    

Here, Pretty Weasel asked Hughes if A.D. told her A.D. was upset 

because Pretty Weasel spanked her, to which she said yes.  JT 370.  This 

is misleading because Pretty Weasel argued A.D. was upset with him for 

spanking her so she fabricated the abuse.  PWB 8.  The State has a right 

to refute the defense, which it did by asking Hughes in redirect if there 

was a connection between the spanking and sexual abuse.   

F.  Hughes Did Not Exceed the Scope of Testimony Allowed in  
Buchholtz.  

 
Pretty Weasel also argues Hughes testified beyond the scope 

allowed in Buchholtz.  PWB 20-22.  This Court held that an expert 

diagnosis of “child sexual abuse” given by a doctor was prejudicial 

because the ‘“medical diagnosis’ acted in effect as independent evidence 

of the offense[]” but was merely an “endorsement of the [victim’s] 

testimony”.  Buchholtz, 2013 S.D. 96, ¶ 30, 841 N.W.2d at 459.  Because 

the defense’s theory of the case was the victim was confused as to what 

had happened; the doctor’s testimony solidified to the jury any question 

of whether the victim fabricated the abuse.  Buchholtz, 2013 S.D. 96,  

¶ 30 841 N.W.2d at 459.  
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But this case is distinguishable.  Hughes testified that A.D. was 

diagnosed with (PTSD).  She did not state the cause of A.D.’s PTSD.  In 

fact, based on the line of questioning, the cause could be various things.  

Hughes said Pretty Weasel contacted her because his son, K.P., had 

sexually abused A.D. and he wanted Hughes to address the problem.  

JT 364-65.  The State asked Hughes if A.D. exhibited lack of hygiene.  

JT 366.  Hughes stated she had and stated A.D. felt if she was 

“unattractive and ugly” she would be safer, and people would “stay away 

from her.”  JT 366.  Then, the following exchange took place:  

State:  Okay.  Did [Pretty Weasel] talk about [A.D.] as far as  
her truthfulness? 

 
Hughes:  Yes, he did. 

Pretty Weasel:  I'm going to object improper.  It would be 
invading the province of the jury. It's one witness discussing 

the veracity of another witness. 

Court:  What was your question, Mr. Fitzgerald? 

State:  Did [Pretty Weasel] discuss [A.D.] being a 
truthful person. 

 
Court:  Oh, sustained. 

State:  What was your diagnosis of [A.D.]? 

Pretty Weasel:  Objection 702, State versus Buchholtz. 

Court:  Well, these records were subpoenaed, I believe, at 

your request and they were given to both parties and I'm 
going to allow it. 

State:  What was your diagnosis? 

Hughes:  Post-traumatic stress disorder. 

State:  And what does that mean? 

Hughes:  That is an event where an individual fears being 

harmed or the harm of someone else and, as a result of that 
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fear, then they have different behaviors and actions that 
continue to reproduce fear and the need to protect. 

State:  Is she being treated for that now? 

Hughes:  Yes. 

State:  By you? 

Hughes:  Yes. 

State:  Did you see things that indicated to you that there 
was something more going on here than what had happened 
at the hands of [K.P.]? 

Pretty Weasel:  Objection. Calls for speculation, improper 

702, unnoticed 702. 

Court: Sustained. 

JT 366-68.  The State then inquired about how the therapy sessions 

were conducted and if the parents were involved.  JT 368. 

 By telling the jury A.D. was diagnosed with PTSD, Hughes did not 

invade the province of the jury.  She did not vouch for A.D.’s credibility.  

She did not say Pretty Weasel raped A.D.  She merely stated A.D.’s 

diagnosis.  The cause, based on the record, is still unknown.  It could be 

from Pretty Weasel sexually abusing her.  It could also be K.P. sexually 

abusing her.  It could have been from Pretty Wesel spanking her.  It 

could be a litany of other things not even mentioned during the trial.  For 

Pretty Weasel to say this diagnosis was so damning, it changed the 

outcome of the trial is absurd.  In fact, Pretty Weasel concedes that is 

“arguable this diagnosis could also relate to A.D.’s siblings, who had 

sexual touched A.D.”  PWB 22, n.3.    
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CONCLUSION 

Because Pretty Weasel did not object to Hughes’s testimony at 

trial, he waived this issue on appeal.  Nor did Hughes testify as an expert 

in child sexual abuse, so her testimony could not be improper expert 

witness testimony.  Lastly, Hughes’s testimony was not prejudicial as the 

evidence against Pretty Weasel was overwhelming. 

The State respectfully requests that Defendant’s convictions and 

sentences be affirmed.  

     Respectfully submitted, 

MARTY J. JACKLEY 

ATTORNEY GENERAL 

 

 

/s/ Erin E Handke   

Erin E. Handke 

Assistant Attorney General 

1302 East Highway 14, Suite 1 

Pierre, SD  57501-8501 

Telephone:  (605) 773-3215 

E-mail:  atgservice@state.sd.us  

mailto:atgservice@state.sd.us
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THE SUPREME COURT 

OF THE 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

APPEAL # 30087 

 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA, 

 

  Plaintiff and Appellee, 

 

v. 

 

VANDON JOSEPH PRETTY WEASEL, 

 

  Defendant and Appellant. 

___________________________________ 

 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

 

 Appellant’s Reply Brief will utilize the same abbreviations as were used in the 

Appellant’s Brief.  Additionally, the State’s Appellee’s Brief will be cited as “SB” for State’s 

Brief followed by the appropriate page number(s).     

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT 

 

Mr. Pretty Weasel reasserts the Jurisdictional Statement from his Appellant’s Brief.  

  

 

STATEMENT OF THE LEGAL ISSUES 

 

1.   The circuit court violated Mr. Pretty Weasel’s right to a fair trial and related 

statutory rights when it permitted the State to submit unnoticed expert 

testimony from the alleged victim’s counselor.   

  

The circuit court held that the defense was on notice of these expert 

opinions given that the defense had subpoenaed the counselor’s records.  

(See, JT Vol. 3 at p. 367). 

   

  State v. Krebs, 2006 S.D. 43, 714 N.W.2d 91.  

Papke v. Harbert, 2007 S.D. 87, 738 N.W.2d 510. 

  Kaiser v. University Physician’s Clinic, 2006 S.D. 95, 724 N.W.2d 186. 
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2. The circuit court improperly permitted expert opinions that bolstered the 

testimony of the alleged victim.   

 

The circuit court simply overruled the defense objection to these expert 

opinions without providing any analysis.    

 

State v. Buchholtz, 2013 S.D. 96, 841 N.W.2d 449. 

United States v. Whitted, 11 F.3d 782 (8th Cir.1993). 

Daubert v. Merrell Dow Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 509 U.S. 579, 113 S.Ct. 

2786, 125 L.Ed.2d 469 (1993). 

 

SUMMARY 

 

Mr. Pretty Weasel requests that this Court review two separate but related issues on 

appeal.  First, Mr. Pretty Weasel submits that the State surprised the defense at trial by 

presenting unnoticed expert opinions from AD’s counselor.  Even though AD’s counselor 

was not on the State’s witness list, the counselor was permitted to tell the jury that she had 

diagnosed AD with post-traumatic stress disorder.  She also provided the expert opinion 

that AD felt safer from abuse if she remained unattractive and “hideous.”  (JT Vol. 3 at p. 

366).  The defense was unaware of these opinions until the counselor was testifying before 

the jury.   

In addition, part of the defense’s theory of the case was that AD had a motive to lie 

about the sexual abuse allegations because she was unhappy with Mr. Pretty Weasel for 

spanking her.  Over the defense’s objection, the counselor explained to the jury that AD 

not liking her stepfather for being spanked was unrelated to her later allegations that she 

had been sexually assaulted by him.  “I do not see the two incidents connecting at all.”  (Id. 

at p. 370).  The defense maintains that this, as well as other portions of her testimony, only 

served to improperly bolster AD’s credibility.    
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS 

 

Mr. Pretty Weasel reasserts his Statement of the Case and Facts as presented in his 

Appellant’s Brief.  

ARGUMENTS 

1. The circuit court violated Mr. Pretty Weasel’s right to a fair trial and related 

statutory rights when it permitted the State to submit unnoticed expert testimony 

from the alleged victim’s counselor.   

 

Standard of Review:  “[This Court] presume[s] the evidentiary rulings made by a trial 

court are correct, and review[s] those rulings under an abuse of discretion standard.” State 

v. Krebs, 2006 S.D. 43, ¶ 19, 714 N.W.2d 91, 99.     

Response to State’s Arguments.  The State provides a number of arguments against 

Mr. Pretty Weasel’s position.  The State also takes both of Mr. Pretty Weasel’s separate 

issues and combines them into one argument.  (SB 5).  All though Mr. Pretty Weasel has 

presented two distinct issues, this brief will address the State’s arguments in the order 

presented in its Appellee’s Brief.    

State’s Argument of Waiver.  Although the State acknowledges that Mr. Pretty 

Weasel objected to the testimony of Hughes by citing Rule 702 and informing the trial 

court that the testimony was both “improper” and “unnoticed,” the State maintains that Mr. 

Pretty Weasel’s trial objections were not specific enough to persevere the objection for this 

Court’s review.  The State goes on to argue that in order to preserve the issues, Mr. Pretty 

Weasel was required to object when Hughes was first called as a witness and to request a 

Daubert hearing and/or request to voir dire Hughes.  (SB 7-8).  

The standard for preserving trial error is found at SDCL 19-19-103.  The relevant 

portion of the statute reads: 
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(a) Preserving a claim of error. A party may claim error in a ruling to admit 

or exclude evidence only if the error affects a substantial right of the party and: 

(1)    If the ruling admits evidence, a party, on the record: 

(A)    Timely objects or moves to strike; and 

(B)    States the specific ground, unless it was apparent from the context;  

 
Nothing in the plain language of SDCL 19-19-103 requires a party who has raised 

an objection to also request permission to voir dire a witness and/or to request a separate 

Daubert hearing.  To the contrary, the statute only requires the party claiming error to 

“timely object” and state the “specific ground.” 

A similar waiver argument was raised by the State in State v. Blem, S.D. 2000 69, 

¶38, 610 N.W.2d 803, 811 (S.D. 2000).  In Blem, the defendant was on trial for first 

degree manslaughter.  At trial, the State surprised the defense with a blood splatter expert.  

The defense objected on the grounds that the state had violated the trial court’s discovery 

order related to disclosing expert opinions.  On appeal, the state argued that the defendant 

had waived the objection given that the defense “1) did not make immediate objections to 

[the expert’s] testimony, (2) did not ask for a continuing objection or for an immediate 

mistrial, and (3) did not ask for a Daubert hearing.”  Id. at 38.  In response to this 

argument this Court simply wrote, “We disagree. The record indicates that Blem’s attorney 

objected and preserved the issue for appeal.”  Id.    

 In this matter, Mr. Pretty Weasel specifically stated the legal grounds for his 

objections, just as in Blem supra.   Here, the defense cited “chapter and verse” to Rule of 

Evidence 702 and informed the trial court that the evidence was “improper” and that it was 

also “unnoticed.”  These are the two issues that Mr. Pretty Weasel now brings on appeal.   

 While it is always possible with hindsight to consider the possibility of having made 

longer or more detailed objections, the rules of evidence do not require the perfect 

objection.  Based upon the objections made here, the trial court was clearly in a position to 
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rule on the two questions of whether Hughes’ testimony was improper under Rule 702 and 

whether the State had provided proper notice of her opinions.  With all due respect, citing 

a specific rule of evidence is about as clear an objection that a party can make without 

making a “speaking objection.”  Just as in Blem, this Court should find that citing to a 

specific rule of evidence complies with SDCL 19-19-103 and find that the issues are 

preserved for this Court’s review.         

Hughes Did Not Testify as an Expert Witness.  The State also argues that 

“…Hughes was not used as an expert witness in this case.  And certainly, not an expert in 

child sexual abuse.”  (SB 10).  Mr. Pretty Weasel respectfully points to the record of her 

testimony.   

While she was testifying, over defense objection, the State asked Hughes about AD’s lack 

of hygiene, “And what was that indicative of in your profession?”  (JT Vol 3 at p. 366).  

Additionally, the State asked Hughes, “What was your diagnosis [of AD]?”  (Id. at p. 367).  

The State also asked Hughes about AD’s being angry with Mr. Pretty Weasel over the 

spanking incident and Hughes was permitted to inform the jury that AD’s anger over being 

spanked was not connected to her allegations of sexual abuse.  (Id. at p. 370). 

Hughes is not making fact claims in her testimony.  To the contrary, she is 

diagnosing AD and she is giving her opinions, which are based on her experience as a 

counselor, as to what AD’s behaviors and statements meant.  This is clearly expert 

testimony.   

The State points out that the trial court never declared Hughes to be an expert.  

(SB 9).  However, the State fails to cite any authority for the proposition that witness 

opinions only become expert opinions if a trial court declares the witness to be an expert.  
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What the jury heard was a counselor who diagnosed AD and then explained and 

interpreted what AD’s behaviors and words meant.  This is clearly expert testimony. 

Perhaps more importantly, the State is taking a different position on appeal then it 

did at trial.  The record clearly established that the State’s trial counsel intended Hughes to 

be an expert witness.  When defense counsel objected to Hughes’ testimony under Rule 

702, the State did not respond by making an argument that Hughes was only a fact witness.  

Rather, the State asked Hughes, “And what was that indicative of in your profession?”  (JT 

Vol 3 at p. 366).  “What was your diagnosis [of AD]?”  (Id. at p. 367).  Under the rules of 

evidence, these are questions that can only be asked of experts.  The State on appeal 

should not be permitted to take a different position then it did a trial.  See, United States v. 

Jereb, 882 F.3d 1325 (10th Cir. 2018) (invited error doctrine precludes a party from taking 

one position and then a contrary position on appeal), United States v. LaHue, 261 F.3d 

993 (10th Cir. 2001) (invited error doctrine prevent defendants from arguing opposite 

position on appeal).  

Hughes Testimony Was Not Prejudicial.  The State maintains that Hughes’ 

testimony was not prejudicial and that it did not change the outcome of the trial.  (SB 10).  

However, for some reason, trial counsel for the State thought it was important to call 

Hughes as a surprise witness.  Additionally, the State’s argument ignores the reality of the 

impact that an expert witness can have on a jury.  Mr. Pretty Weasel submits that the 

prejudice that occurred in this case is the same that occurred in Buchholtz, cited and 

discussed extensively in the Appellant’s Brief.  AD’s credibility is central to this case.  The 

State was able to present a surprise expert that testified, in effect, about the credibility of 

AD.  At the risk of being redundant, in Buchholtz, this Court was careful to lay out the 

grounds for prejudice.  This Court wrote, 
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Yet, in the absence of any physical evidence of rape, Dr. Kertz’s opinion 

put to rest, with an air of medical certainty, any question about whether [the 

alleged victim] had somehow imagined or fabricated what happened with 

Buchholtz. 

 

Id. at ¶30, 459-60. 

 
In this case, the same prejudicial impact occurred.  The State did not present any 

physical evidence that AD was sexually abused.  However, the State was able to present 

evidence with “an air of medical certainty” that AD did not fabricate her claims or have a 

motive to do so. 

In addition, and unlike the defendant in Buchholtz, here the defense was taken by 

surprise and was not able to fully confront the expert testimony presented by Hughes.  This 

means that the prejudicial impact of an expert opinion that “puts to rest, with an air of 

medical certainty,” the credibility of an alleged victim, was not fully challenged or submitted 

to the full test of cross-examination.  The prejudice here is very similar to the prejudice that 

this Court found in the civil case of Papke v. Harbert, 2007 S.D. 87, ¶ 56, 738 N.W.2d 

510, 529.  In Papke, this Court reversed a jury’s verdict after one of the parties was 

surprised by expert testimony on the issue of causation of damages.  This Court found that 

the surprise that took place warranted a new trial given that the opposing side was unable to 

prepare to meet this testimony.  The Court noted that the surprised party “was unable to 

conduct any investigation, prepare any effective cross-examination, or retain an expert to 

disprove or counter that testimony in rebuttal.”  Papke at ¶ 53, 528. 

The prejudice here is that the convictions are based, at least in part, on expert 

testimony that addresses the credibility of the alleged victim, and that expert testimony has 

not been fully challenged and confronted.  Had the defense had the opportunity to prepare 

to confront this testimony, the result of the case may well have been different.  This Court 
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did not permit a civil verdict to stand when it was based upon surprise expert testimony.  

Id.  This Court should apply the same principles and analysis in the context of a criminal 

conviction as well.   

The Door Was Opened to Portions of Hughes’ Testimony.  Does asking a witness 

a fact question open the door to undisclosed expert opinions?  In this matter, the defense 

took the position that AD’s being mad at her father gave her motive to fabricate her 

allegations of sexual abuse.  The defense did not just make this argument up from thin air.  

This argument was based on the fact that AD had told her counselor that she was mad at 

Mr. Pretty Weasel for having spanked her.  This argument could hardly come as a surprise 

to the State given the nature of the discovery in this case.  Both sides had access to Hughes’ 

records.   

This Court has recently addressed the open-door doctrine in State v. Nohava.  This 

Court noted that the open-door doctrine is not without limits and wrote,  

The gist of the open-door doctrine is proportionality and fairness. When 

the opponent's response does not directly contradict the evidence 

previously received or goes beyond the necessity of removing prejudice in 

the interest of fairness, it should not be admitted.   

 

2021 S.D. 34, ¶ 19, 960 N.W.2d 844, 850-51 (internal citation omitted).   

The State argues that the door to Hughes’ testimony was, at least in part, opened on 

the grounds that the defense had mislead the jury about the fact that AD had claimed to be 

mad about being spanked.  The State goes on to argue that based on the defense 

presenting the jury with this “misleading” evidence, the State had a “right to refute the 

defense, which it did by asking Hughes in redirect if there was a connection between the 

spanking and the sexual abuse.”  (SB 14-15).   
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The record establishes that the defense did not mislead the jury.  According to 

Hughes’ records, AD did claim to be mad for having been spanked by Mr. Pretty Weasel.  

The defense never claimed that AD confessed to Hughes that she had fabricated her 

claims of sexual abuse to Hughes.  To be clear, the defense claimed that AD had motive to 

fabricate her claims of sexual abuse because she had been angry with Mr. Pretty Weasel.   

The fundamental flaw with the State’s argument is that it assumes, as true, that AD’s 

claims of being angry about being spanked are unrelated to her claims of sexual abuse.  

The defense maintained that the jury could interpret AD’s anger about being spanked as 

motive.  The State disagreed.  The jury decides how to interpret the evidence.  The 

defense did not misstate the facts or mislead the jury by leaving out relevant facts.  Simply 

because the State disagrees with an argument does not mean the defense is misleading the 

jury.   

If the State wanted to refute the defense’s theory about AD’s motive to lie, the 

proper method would have been to recall AD to the stand so that she could explain her 

motives and whether her being spanked had anything to do with her claims of sexual abuse.  

AD is the one witness who can properly testify about her motive.  A lay fact witness is not 

permitted to interpret the meaning of someone else’s past statements.  See, Rule 701.  A 

lay witness would not be able to lay the foundation for that type of opinion.  See, Rule 602.  

Additionally, the defense is not aware of any legal authority that permits an expert witness 

to testify about an alleged victim’s specific motives as they relate to specific past statements.   

Even if the defense had somehow misled the jury, the door cannot be opened to 

expert testimony that does not comply with the rules of evidence.  Such a response would 

not be proportional and would go “beyond the necessity of removing prejudice.”  Id.  A 

reading of this Court’s precedent on this matter seems to indicate that the open-door 
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doctrine permits facts into evidence that might not otherwise be admissible to rebut facts 

that leave an unfair impression.  But nothing in the open-door doctrine seems to indicate 

that a party is permitted to submit improper expert testimony in response to facts.  Id.  

Hughes Did Not Exceed the Scope of Testimony Allowed in Bucchultz.  The State 

argues that Hughes’ expert testimony did not exceed the scope of Rule 702 or this Court’s 

ruling in State v. Buchholtz.  Buchholtz places limits on an expert testifying to ultimate 

credibility of an alleged victim in a sexual abuse case.   

In this matter, the trial court permitted Hughes to testify that in her expert opinion, 

“…[AD] felt that the more unattractive and ugly and hideous…she looked…people would 

stay away from her and she was safer.”  (Id. at p. 366).  The State was also able to present 

surprise testimony that AD suffered from post-traumatic stress disorder.  This diagnosis left 

the jury with the strong impression that AD had indeed undergone some type of traumatic 

experience, perhaps the sexual abuse that she was claiming against her stepfather.  Hughes 

was also permitted to testify that AD’s anger with Mr. Pretty Weasel was, in her 

professional opinion, unrelated to AD’s claims of sexual abuse.   

 The opinions that Hughes provided to the jury are beyond what this Court 

permitted in Buchholtz.  In the context of AD’s sexual allegations against her stepfather, 

Hughes told the jury that she diagnosed AD with post-traumatic stress disorder.  Although 

she did not say the words, “child sexual abuse,” (the diagnosis this Court prohibited in 

Buchholtz), taken in context, the implication of Hughes’ diagnosis is clear.  She was telling 

the jury that she believed AD’s claims that she was sexually abused by Mr. Pretty Weasel.  

The State argues that Hughes’ diagnosis was unclear and perhaps it was related to 

allegations that AD was abused by her stepbrother.  (SB 17).  The defense maintains that a 

fair reading of Hughes’ testimony establishes that this was not the case.  Moreover, if the 
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diagnosis was only based on AD’s stepbrother’s sexual abuse, Hughes’ diagnosis would not 

be relevant to Mr. Pretty Weasel’s case.  The reason the trial prosecutor submitted the 

evidence concerning AD’s traumatic stress disorder diagnosis was to imply that AD 

suffered traumatic stress at the hands of Mr. Pretty Weasel.    

Importantly, the State did nothing to further explain this diagnosis or to give any 

other reason for it, other than sexual abuse
1

.  In the context of this record, through her 

diagnosis, Hughes was telling the jury that AD’s claims of sexual abuse were credible.   

Hughes also assessed AD’s credibility by giving her expert opinion that AD’s being 

angry at Mr. Pretty Weasel was not connected to her allegations of sexual abuse.  The jury 

is entrusted with determining if a witness has a motive to fabricate an allegation.  When an 

alleged victim’s treating counselor explains that a witness being angry with someone is 

unconnected to an allegation of sexual abuse, the expert is simply telling the jury that anger 

is not a motive to fabricate.  This is just another means of telling the jury what to believe.  

As this Court noted in Buchholtz, this type of testimony is not helpful to the jury. 

Prejudicial Surprise.  Even if this Court were to find that Hughes’ testimony was 

proper under Rule 702, the fact remains, the defense was unfairly surprised by this 

evidence. The defense should have had the opportunity to prepare to meet this expert 

evidence.  In State v. Blem, this Court held,  

Once an expert opinion is known to the State and the State determines that 

it will solicit that opinion in court, it must disclose the opinion to the 

defense regardless of the number of days or hours before the witness is 

scheduled to testify.  

 

2000 S.D. 69 ¶ 40, 610 N.W.2d 803, 811. 

  

 
1

 Although arguable, this diagnosis could also relate to one of AD’s siblings, who had sexually touched AD.  

However, the defense maintains that when considering the context of Hughes’ testimony, she was implicitly 

referring to Mr. Pretty Weasel.   
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The central issue at this trial was AD’s credibility.  The State was able to present 

expert testimony that helped to bolster AD’s testimony and to explain away a theory of the 

defense.  Hughes was even permitted to put her expert stamp of approval on AD’s claims 

about wanting to be ugly to avoid being sexually abused.  The trial prosecutor asked, “And 

what was that indicative of in your profession?”  Hughes responded, “...she felt the more 

unattractive and ugly and hideous…her behaviors and how she looked, people would stay 

away from her and she was safer.” (JT Vol. 3 at p. 366).  Without notice, the defense was 

unable to properly prepare and to effectively cross-examine Hughes about this central 

issue.  The defense was unable to conduct any investigation, prepare an effective cross-

examination, or retain an expert to disprove or counter that testimony in rebuttal.   

Had the defense been given advance notice of Hughes’ expert opinions, it would 

have requested the disclosure of the foundation of her opinions in order to prepare to 

challenge those opinions.  The one opinion that perhaps stands out the most is whether 

any medical journals or research supports Hughes’ claims that a child’s anger over being 

spanked does not provide motive to fabricate a false claim.  Importantly, the defense 

should not be called upon to ask these questions for the first time in front of a jury.  Under 

the rules of discovery, and the trial court’s rulings, the defense should have had an 

opportunity to prepare to meet this testimony instead of being ambushed.   

2. The circuit court improperly permitted expert opinions that bolstered the 

testimony of the alleged victim. 

 

Structurally, the State made its arguments against this issue under the argument 

presented above and Mr. Pretty Weasel’s responses are contained there as well.  Based 

upon those arguments, Mr. Pretty Weasel maintains that the circuit court did permit 

impermissible expert opinions that prejudiced his right to a fair trial.    
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CONCLUSION 

The State’s arguments to the contrary notwithstanding, the jury found Mr. Pretty 

Weasel guilty only after they heard a surprise expert testify about AD’s diagnosis and that, 

in effect, AD’s anger over being spanked was not a motive for her to fabricate her claims of 

sexual abuse.  This type of opinion testimony only served to improperly bolster the 

credibility of AD.  Even if this type of evidence was permissible, the defense should have 

had notice and the opportunity to prepare to meet it.  The rules require the State to 

provide notice and it failed to do so.   

Mr. Pretty Weasel requests that this Court enter an Order reversing and remanding 

this action for a new trial where he can be prepared to meet the witnesses against him.  

REQUEST FOR ORAL ARGUMENT 

 Mr. Pretty Weasel respectfully requests oral argument on all issues. 

 Dated this 21
st

 day of February 2023. 

 

      GREY & 

EISENBRAUN LAW 

 

 

       

      Ellery Grey 

      909 St. Joseph Street, 10
th

 Floor 

      Rapid City, SD 57701 

      (605) 791-5454 

      ellery@greyeisenbraunlaw.com  
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OF THE 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

APPEAL #30087 

 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA, 

  Plaintiff and Appellee, 

 

v.               CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 

 

VANDON JOSEPH PRETTY WEASEL, 

  Defendant and Appellant.   

________________________________________________________________________ 

 Pursuant to SDCL 15-26A-66, Ellery Grey, counsel for Defendant/Appellant, does 

submit the following: 

 The Appellant’s Reply Brief is 13 pages in length.  It is typed in proportionally 

spaced typeface Baskerville 12 point.  The word processor used to prepare this brief 

indicates there are a total of 3, 822 words in the body of the brief. 

 Dated this 21
st

 day of February 2023. 

      GREY & 

      EISENBRAUN LAW 

 

 

      

      Ellery Grey 

      Attorney for Appellant 
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